
 

 

 
 

Budget Scrutiny Task Group - Public Realm 
 

All Members of the Public Realm Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group are requested to 
attend the meeting of the Commission to be held as follows 
 
Thursday, 19th November, 2015 
 
7.00 pm 
 
Room 103, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA 
 
Contact: 
Tom Thorn 
( 0208 356 8186 
* thomas.thorn@hackney.gov.uk 
 
Gifty Edila 
Corporate Director of Legal, Human Resources and Regulatory Services 
 
Members: Cllr Jon Burke, Cllr Margaret Gordon (Chair), Cllr Rick Muir and 

Cllr Nick Sharman 
  

Agenda 
 

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

1 Apologies for Absence   

2 Urgent Items / Order of Business   

3 Declarations of Interest   

4 Future approaches to waste and cleansing services  (Pages 1 - 2) 

5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 20) 

6 Public Realm Budget Scrutiny for 2015/16 - closing 
thoughts  

(Pages 21 - 22) 

7 Any Other Business   

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Access and Information 
 
 

Getting to the Town Hall 

For a map of how to find the Town Hall, please visit the council’s website 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm or contact the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer using the details provided on the front cover of this agenda. 

 
 

Accessibility 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor 
of the Town Hall. 
 
Induction loop facilities are available in the Assembly Halls and the Council 
Chamber. Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through 
the ramp on the side to the main Town Hall entrance. 

 
 

Further Information about the Commission 
 
If you would like any more information about the Scrutiny 
Commission, including the membership details, meeting 
dates and previous reviews, please visit the website or use 
this QR Code (accessible via phone or tablet ‘app’) 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/individual-scrutiny-
commissions-community-safety-and-social-inclusion.htm  

 
 

Public Involvement and Recording 
Scrutiny meetings are held in public, rather than being public meetings. This 
means that whilst residents and press are welcome to attend, they can only 
ask questions at the discretion of the Chair. For further information relating to 
public access to information, please see Part 4 of the council’s constitution, 
available at http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm or by contacting 
Governance Services (020 8356 3503) 
 
Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings 
 

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the 
press and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its 
committees, through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital 
and social media providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and 
providing that the person reporting or providing the commentary is present at 



 

 

the meeting. 
 
Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to 
notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if 
possible, or any time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the 
start of the meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area 
from which all recording must take place at a meeting. 
 
The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, 
hear and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require 
any other reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring 
Officer in advance of the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do 
so. 
 
The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   
Anyone acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease 
recording or may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may 
include: moving from any designated recording area; causing excessive 
noise; intrusive lighting; interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the 
public who have asked not to be filmed. 
 
All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on 
recording councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the 
conduct of the meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the 
public present if they have objections to being visually recorded.  Those 
visually recording a meeting are asked to respect the wishes of those who do 
not wish to be filmed or photographed.   Failure by someone recording a 
meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed and 
photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease recording or in 
their exclusion from the meeting. 
 
If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and 
public are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or 
hear the proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential 
or exempt information is under consideration. 
 
Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group – Public Realm 

19th November 2015 

Item 4 – Future approaches to waste and 
cleansing services 

 
Item No 

 

4 
 
 
Outline 
The substantive item for this meeting is for Members to hear information around and 
give views upon, any movement towards the integration of the waste and cleansing 
services currently operated separately by the Council and Hackney Homes. 
 
Papers had not been provided in time for them to be published here. 
 
Action 
Members are asked to have reviewed any written information sent to them 
separately in advance of the meeting. They are invited to ask questions of Officers in 
attendance at the meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group – Public Realm 

19th November 2015 

Item 5 – Minutes of the Meeting 16th September 
2015 

 
Item No 

 

5 
 
 
Outline 
Attached is a draft set of minutes from the meeting on 21st October 2015.  
 
There was one action arising from the meeting in October. 
 
ACTION (Head of Environment and Waste Strategy): 
To provide available data for similar boroughs on the income and expenditure from 
a charging model compared to a non-charging one, factoring in the costs of 
flytipping clear ups under the two different arrangements. 
 
RESPONSE: A paper has been provided which has been appended to the Minutes 
 
Action 
Members are asked to review and agree the Minutes as an accurate record.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes of the proceedings of the 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group - 
Public Realm held at 
Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, 
London E8 1EA 

 
 

 
London Borough of Hackney 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group - Public Realm  
Municipal Year 2015/16 
Date of Meeting Wednesday, 21st October, 2015 

 
 

Chair Councillor Margaret Gordon 
 

Councillors in 
Attendance 

Cllr Jon Burke and Cllr Nick Sharman 

  
Apologies:  Cllr Rick Muir 
  

Co-optees   
  
Officers In Attendance Dr Penny Bevan (Director of Public Health), Mark Griffin 

(Head of Environment and Waste Strategy), Ian Holland 
(Head of Leisure and Green Spaces), Tom McCourt 
(Assistant Director - Public Realm), John Wheatley (Head 
of Waste Operations) and Kim Wright (Corporate Director 
Health and Community Services) 

  

Other People in 
Attendance 

Councillor Kam Adams, Councillor Feryal Demirci 
(Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods), Councillor 
Jonathan McShane (Cabinet Member for Health, Social 
Care and Culture), Councillor Anna-Joy Rickard and 
Councillor Peter Snell 

  
Members of the Public PublicInAttendance 
  
Officer Contact: 
 

Tom Thorn 
( 0208 356 8186 
* thomas.thorn@hackney.gov.uk 
 

 
Councillor Margaret Gordon in the Chair 

 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
1.1 Apologies were received from Cllr Muir. 
 

2 Urgent Items / Order of Business  
 
2.1 There were no urgent items of business and the order was as laid out. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 

 

Page 5



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4 Submissions from the Public Realm Division  
 
4.1 The Chair introduced this item by saying that this meeting was designed to hear 

further information around savings proposals for 2016/17 for the services falling 
within the Public Realm Division, and for the Leisure and Green Spaces Service, 
following the meeting on the 16th September. 

 
4.2 She advised the Group that, as per emails sent to them, an additional meeting 

had been arranged for the 19th November, in which Members would hear further 
information around the Public Realm cross-cutting review, and any movement 
towards the integration of the waste and cleansing services currently operated 
separately by the Council and Hackney Homes. 

 
4.3 She asked that Tom McCourt, Assistant Director Public Realm, gave a very brief 

overview of the three papers from his area, which were available within the 
agenda packs. 

  
4.4 The Assistant Director Public Realm advised Members that the first paper 

explored the potential of changing the Bulky Waste Service from a free to a 
chargeable service, with different models for consideration. Introducing charging 
would bring the Council into line with the majority of other London Boroughs. 

 
4.5 A further paper within the agenda packs explored the likely impact of 

implementing reductions in street cleansing activity and in the number of crews 
within the graffiti and fly posting removal team. 

 
4.6 The third item was a paper exploring the scope for greater income generation 

from greater advertising activity within the public realm. 
 
4.7 The Chair at this point invited questions from Members on the proposals around 

the Bulky Waste function. 
 
Discussion on Bulky Waste 
4.8 A Member noted that the paper stated that there were ICT requirements for a 

charging model to be introduced. She asked what the cost of the new system 
would be, and whether there would be a risk of costs escalating from those 
estimated. 

 
4.9 Mark Griffin, Head of Environment and Waste Strategy said that ICT were aware 

of a potential change in the service model and of the likely new requirements for 
the current system. While there was not a dedicated resource in place to deliver 
the changes at this stage, it was envisaged that there could be for the start of 
2016/17. The analyst responsible for these changes would be made responsible 
for the delivery of other ICT requirements within the Division also; experience 
had shown that ICT changes had been delivered most successfully where the 
time of the resource was focused within one single area of the Council. 

 
4.10 The Head of Environment and Waste Strategy thought that it was reasonable to 

not foresee an escalation in ICT costs and the time for implementation as 
becoming an issue; there was not a need for a full new system to be developed, 
and the requirements had been successfully installed in a number of other 
systems used by the Council. The new facility would be linked with the new 
Hackney One Account, where residents would be able to request and pay for 
bulky waste collections online in addition to interacting with other services. 

 

Page 6



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

4.11 There was a discussion among Members as to whether it was reasonable to 
introduce charging for items of bulky waste, on the proviso that residents on low 
incomes were offered some continued free provision. 

  
4.11 A Member felt that a move to a charging model for bulky waste collections was 

reasonable, as long as the charges made were fair. Introducing a charging 
service sent a message that there were costs involved with waste collection. 

 
4.12 Another Member said that with the scale of savings which were likely to be 

required, that it was fair for the Council to give consideration towards which 
services it could and should continue to deliver for free.  

 
6.13 The Head of Environment and Waste Strategy said that the moving to a charging 

model would put the Council in line with the majority of other boroughs.  
 
4.14 A Member said that his experience when working to install a charging service 

elsewhere, was that there was a resulting increase in flytipping. He said that this 
would need to be carefully managed.  

 
4.15 At this point, Feryal Demirci, the Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods said that 

she did feel that there needed to be a review of the approach to Bulky Waste, 
and that the paper submitted included a number of models for Members to 
consider. However, with the Council currently carrying out a large review of 
Enforcement functions across the organisation, it was important that the 
approach to this was partly informed by any predicted need for greater 
enforcement activity post the ending of a free Bulky Waste service. 

 
4.16 The Head of Environment and Waste Strategy said that the service had 

established a good record of enforcing effectively against flytipping. It would 
need to ensure that it was ready to tackle any escalation. However, evidence 
available suggested that the impact on flytipping volumes of moving to a 
charging service would not be significant.  

 
4.17 The great majority of residents acted lawfully around their waste disposal 

(especially around the disposal of larger items) and evidence very much 
suggested that changes to the Bulky Waste Service would not effect this. When 
the Council had removed communal skips residents had not chosen to continue 
dumping in the location illegally. In Enfield, the closure of a household recycling 
centre had not resulted in a higher escalation of flytipping. These examples had 
helped form the view that a move to a charging service would not result in the 
Council still needing to collect large volumes of bulky waste for free, but via 
flytipping clear ups. 

 
4.18 In addition, he was only aware of one case where a borough had moved to a 

charging model only to return back to universally free one. This had recently 
occurred at Tower Hamlets although he understood that this change was due to 
a political decision rather than one based on the results of the charging model. 

 
4.19 In response to a Member asking what the rationale was around proposals for 

bulky waste collections to allow for five items per time, the Head of Environment 
and Waste Strategy advised that this allowed for some consistency with the 
previous arrangement. 

 
4.20 John Wheatley, Head of Environmental Operations elaborated on this, saying 

that the collection of a number of items in one visit was more efficient than 
collecting 1 or two items on a number of visits. He felt that the introduction of a 
charging service would result in less multiple visits where the service collected 
one item, towards a pattern of residents rationing their collection orders so that 

Page 7



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

they made the full use of the five item limit in most cases. This, aside from any 
benefit from income generation, would help make the service more cost effective 
and efficient. 

 
4.21 The Head of Environmental Operations also said that he felt that residents, while 

very much expecting streets to be clean and refuse to be collected in return for 
the Council Tax that they paid, would generally expect to pay for larger items of 
rubbish to be collected. He pointed out that suppliers of new white goods or 
furniture in most cases charged customers to collect and dispose of their old 
goods. In addition, the proposed charges - £15 per booking with an allowance of 
up to five items on each one – were below those which the private sector would 
offer. He therefore agreed with the view of the Head of Environment and Waste 
Strategy that there would not be a large impact on levels of flytipping. 

   
4.22 A Member asked how a recommended charge of £15 per booking had been 

reached. Also, whilst not necessarily wishing to replicate their approach, he 
noted that Barnet had been found to have charged far higher amounts. 

 
4.23 The Head of Environment and Waste Strategy said that a charge of £15 had 

been suggested based on what neighbouring boroughs were charging. He felt 
that models where significantly higher amounts that this were charged could 
sometimes be a reflection of an aim to drive out the service from the Council to 
other providers. 

 
4.24 A Member said that he agreed with the view that residents in general saw the 

collection of general waste as a key function which their Council Tax paid for, but 
that bulky waste collection was seen a separate entity and one which it might be 
reasonable to charge for. In principle, and in a setting where the Council needed 
to make significant savings, he felt that a move to a charging service was fair. 

 
4.25 He also said that it had been a big achievement for the Council to have delivered 

and maintained high standards of cleanliness across all areas of the borough. 
Some other local authorities had focused their resources on particular areas. He 
said that if moving to a charging model on the Bulky Waste service helped to 
preserve these high standards then he would be supportive. 

 
4.26 This said, he did feel that a move to a charging model should be made only if 

any resulting increase in flytipping did not largely cancel out the financial benefits 
of the new scheme. 

 
4.27 He said that he would be interested to see factual data from similar boroughs – 

Tower Hamlets in particular – on the income and expenditure from a charging 
model compared to a non-charging one. This would factor in the costs of 
flytipping clear ups under the two different arrangements. 

 
ACTION (Head of Environment and Waste Strategy): 
To provide available data for similar boroughs on the income and expenditure 
from a charging model compared to a non-charging one, factoring in the costs of 
flytipping clear ups under the two different arrangements. 

 
4.28 There was a conversation around the great importance of street cleansing 

standards to residents. The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods said that this 
formed a key part of the way that residents and businesses perceived the 
Council. 

 
4.29 A Member said that in his view it was absolutely crucial that there was a single 

standard of cleansing and waste service for all residents across the borough. He 
said that the transition of services currently delivered by Hackney Homes into the 

Page 8



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

Council and the integration of these separate functions with one another, would 
help to achieve this. He reiterated the view he expressed in the last meeting that 
this needed to be delivered quickly. He hoped that bringing the services together 
would help to achieve the efficiencies required while also achieving and 
maintaining a very good cleansing and waste service across the borough, 
including on estates. 

 
4.30 He looked forward to the meeting in November in which he hoped detailed 

proposals and options were given to Members to consider around integration of 
cleansing and waste services in the Council and Hackney Homes. 

 
4.31 The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods said that she was a strong advocate 

for the fast joining up of services currently delivered separately by the Council 
and Hackney Homes. She said that estate properties made up 52% of the overall 
housing stock in the borough and yet there were separate policies being followed 
around parking, recycling and other areas. 

  
4.32 Bringing a close to this item, the Chair said that she took from the discussions a 

view that there was an openness towards moving to a charging model for bulky 
waste collection. Option B appeared to be the most feasible, and included 
measures to offer those on lower incomes access to some free collections.  

 
4.33 She said that there was a political sensitivity in moving to a charging model; the 

introduction of a free service some years previously had sent a strong message 
about the turnaround of the Council. This said, she agreed with other Members 
that introducing a reasonable set of charges for bulky waste was a fair approach, 
and in line with many other boroughs. 

 
Discussion on proposals around street cleansing and Graffiti/Flyposting Removal 
services 
4.34 Discussions on the paper on street cleaning and graffiti and flyposting removal, 

were held in tandem with those on the one around media activities. 
 
4.35 They have been separated here for clarity. 
 
4.36 There was concern around the level of impact that taking savings in this area 

was predicted to have. One Member said that the priority at this time should be 
integrating the cleansing and waste services of the Council and Hackney Homes. 
Potential savings should be explored as part of this work, and from an integrated 
set of services thereafter. 

 
4.37 A Member said that the night time economy generated significant amounts of 

cleansing requirements. 
 
4.38 There was broad agreement by all Members that clean streets was one of the 

absolute basic commitments that the Council needed to deliver on. One said that 
this would remain the case during a period in which vast savings needed to be 
found. 

 
4.39 Another Member noted that Westminster delivered a model where street 

cleaning was put at the centre of its policies. While not wishing to replicate this 
authority in all areas, he saw room for the Council to follow a similar policy. He 
said that clean streets was a factor of public service which was universally 
important for all. He again celebrated the approach of Hackney in achieving a 
high grade across the borough. 

 
4.40 Another Member sounded a note of caution; while he shared the view that clean 

streets were vital, he also suggested that this should not mean that expenditure 

Page 9



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

within the Public Realm Division was not considered as part of an exploration on 
room for savings. For example, he would welcome an option for consideration 
around reducing expenditure on pavements to pay to sustain some other 
services. 

 
Discussion on media activities on the public realm 
4.41 The Chair noted that the emerging options around advertising were at an early 

stage. They were not due to deliver savings for 2016/17, which was the period 
that this meeting was set to be focused on. However, she invited questions from 
Members on the paper and for them to give a view on the exploration of further 
opportunities from advertising. 

 
4.42 A Member said that he felt any move towards greater levels of advertising 

needed be made very cautiously, and delivered on a step by step basis. Badly 
handled or delivered to excess, new schemes could result in areas losing their 
aesthetic appeal. He said that a key consideration would be around the areas (if 
any) to limit advertising to. This might be within Town Centres and other 
commercial locations. 

 
4.43 Another two Members said that they would be sceptical and had misgivings 

around proposals to increase advertising activity. One said that from his 
viewpoint as a Ward Councillor, that he would be very challenging towards any 
proposal for greater advertising in this area, and that it would be up to Officers to 
prove that its benefits warranted it. Residents would expect nothing less. 

 
 4.44 The Assistant Director, Public Realm said that the work underway was around 

identifying if there were any changes which could be made which would not 
interfere with keeping the distinctive character of the borough. The Head of 
Planning was closely involved and was advising on what might and might not be 
possible and or suitable. 

 
4.45 The Head of Environment and Waste Strategy said that the challenge was to 

design in room for advertising without a great impact on the character of the 
borough, and to ensure that it was also used to deliver information and advice to 
residents. 

 
4.46 The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods said that she appreciated the 

concerns of Members that the unique character of the borough was preserved. 
She fully supported this. She noted that the Council had always been very 
cautious about the extent to which it allowed advertising; including through the 
resistance of any advertising on moving assets (cleansing and waste vehicles for 
example). She said that there would always be a very cautious approach. 

 
4.47 A Member noted that the paper acknowledged that consideration needed to be 

given as to how the Council could ensure that expertise was in place to ensure 
that it gained the best possible deal in advertising contracts. He said that he 
would support a view that an expert be recruited to ensure that residents 
benefitted to the maximum possible amount from advertising activities. He 
suggested that the current contracts in place which were mentioned in the paper, 
appeared to be very questionable as to the value that they delivered. One 
provider had 60 sites for a sum of £21,000, and the net gain by the Council after 
it used the sites itself was only around £6,000.  

 
4.48 Another Member agreed with this point. Elaborating further, he said that he 

would suggest for consideration to be given to any risk that increasing available 
advertising space could have a downward impact on the income that was 
generated from each site. 

 

Page 10



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

4.49 Bringing the item to a close, the Chair said that the discussions had been useful 
to give Members an insight into the information gathering work underway. The 
Officers from the Public Realm Division were thanked and excused. 

 
5 Submission from the Leisure and Green Spaces Service  

 
5.1 Ian Holland, Head of Leisure and Green Spaces, gave a brief overview of a 

paper which was available within the agenda packs. 
 
5.2 He said that all savings for 2016/17 were set to be achieved from a renegotiation 

of the Council’s Leisure Contract with Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL). 
   
5.3 The paper also explored other potential avenues for savings and greater income 

generation which would need consideration if, as was expected, the service was 
required to work within further reduced budgets for 2017/18 and 2018/19. 

 
5.4 Options around income generation included greater sponsorship activities, 

increased catering and ice cream concessions in parks, offering spaces for 
corporate events and the delivery of more major events. 

 
5.5 Options for delivering savings were around a review of the Council’s offer in 

supporting and enabling the scale of community events, lesser grass cutting and 
gardening activity, more locations being kept unlocked overnight, and 
restructures of the service to reduce staff costs (and service capacity). 

 
5.6 Thanking the Head of Leisure and Green Spaces for the presentation and the 

paper, she said that Parks were a function of the Council which served all 
residents. She was thankful for the quality of green spaces (reflected in the 
number of Green Flags awarded to the authority), which was often commented 
upon by people living in Hackney or visiting the borough. 

 
5.7 After the Chair invited questions on the paper, a Member asked that Kim Wright, 

Corporate Director Health and Community Services gave an update on the 
amount of savings that the Council expected to achieve, and its progress in 
identifying where these savings would be produced from. He noted that the 
papers seen during this meeting looked at options to save relatively low amounts 
in the context of Councillors having been previously advised that savings of 
many millions were likely to be needed. 

 
5.8 The Corporate Director Health and Community Services said that the Council 

was still working on a basis of needing to achieve £60 million spending 
reductions during the three years to 2018/19. £16 million had been identified at 
this time. However, it could not be guaranteed that savings in excess of £60 
million would not be required until full details were known of the Comprehensive 
Spending and other relevant proposed changes to finance arrangements 
(business rates and others). 

 
5.9 On the papers giving options for savings of relatively low amounts of money, the 

Corporate Director said that the scale of reductions which were likely to be 
required meant that the Council needed to give consideration to how all of its 
services could contribute. Without doing this, there would be an increased risk of 
not being able to meet the financial challenge. Also, where services had small 
budgets relative to those of some other areas (Leisure and Parks compared to 
Adult Social Care for example), the savings that they proposed could be smaller 
in value while also being significantly larger as a proportion of their overall 
budget. 

 

Page 11



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

5.10 A Member asked about the scope that there was for more large scale, 
commercial events in parks to help answer the savings challenge. She asked 
what downsides there were, and whether there were barriers. 

 
5.11 The Head of Leisure and Green Spaces said that a key barrier was the 

availability of suitable sites on which to cater for large scale events. Only 
Hackney Marshes was big enough to deliver major events. This site was 
common land and to be able to hold events to cater for 40,000 to 50,000 people, 
permission would be required from the Planning Inspectorate. A move to hold 
events on the site (there were currently none) would be likely to face some 
opposition. 

 
 5.12 One downside of holding events on the Marshes was that there would be an 

impact on football pitches, which covered the full ground. While the Service 
would design contracts and charges in which event organisers would pay for the 
renewal of pitches and any other remedial action required following the event, 
there would be an impact on the volume of good quality pitches available 
immediately after an event. 

 
5.13 One Member said he felt that if events were carefully managed and delivered 

outside of the football season wherever possible, that their negative impact could 
be reduced. 

 
5.14 The Head of Leisure and Green Spaces agreed that the impact on the quality of 

space from large scale events could be minimised (although not eradicated) 
through effective management. The 2012 Radio 1 weekend on the Marshes, 
while well managed and delivered, had given points of learning to the service 
which would help reduce the impact on the area that any future events would 
have.   

   
5.15 Another Member said that he would support the Council establishing a 

professional event management function for Parks which could ensure that the 
events allowed to be held were carefully chosen, and that they were managed 
well. He felt that a service should be in place which balanced an offer of 
commercial events with community events. 

 
5.16 The Head of Leisure and Parks said that the service had an Events Manager 

with significant experience of enabling the delivery of large and small events. 
The challenge for him as Head of Service, and subject to the agreement of 
Members, was to ensure that her workload was rebalanced to allow her to 
dedicate more time to building up contact with and attracting, providers of big 
events to the borough.  

 
5.17 A Member sounded a note of caution around a move to hold more large events. 

She said that there was already a perception among many residents that there 
were a lot of large scale events in the borough (sometimes due to Victoria Park 
often being considered to fall in Hackney) and she felt that many would not be 
amenable to more. 

 
5.18 A hostility towards commercial events was coupled with a (rightful) demand for 

the high levels of cleanliness and maintenance of parks to be maintained. 
Residents really valued parks and green spaces as key facilities for the borough.  

 
5.19 With the Council needing to find significant amounts of savings, she accepted 

that there might be little choice but to be more open to commercial events, which 
could help fund the maintaining of standards in the borough’s open spaces. 
However, she felt that the Council would need to manage communications on 
this very effectively. 

Page 12



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

 
5.20 Invited to feed in at this point, Cllr McShane, the Cabinet Member for Health, 

Social Care and Culture, said that he fully agreed that any extension of 
commercial events would need to be managed carefully. He said that 
communications on the benefits that they delivered would be vital. He felt that 
there were lessons to learn from how Islington had worked to clearly 
demonstrate to residents how various improvements in Finsbury Park had been 
made possible by the delivery of events which might not always have been 
popular. The Council would need to maintain its dialogue with Park User Groups. 

 
 5.21 He also felt that the Council had made a misjudgement in the way that it had 

consulted on holding five events per year on Hackney Marshes, further to the 
delivery of the Radio 1 weekend in 2012. He felt that the consultation should 
have been a lot clearer on the positive impact that this would have in terms of the 
maintaining and improving of public services. He felt that results could have been 
more amenable to higher numbers of events if the message had been clearer. 

 
5.22 A Member said that Park User Groups were hugely important and played a key 

role in ensuring a community voice in park management. However, the scale of 
the budget reductions which were needed were vast. For Members to effectively 
deliver their mandate, and to work to restrict the impact of budget reductions on 
an overall level, all avenues needed to be considered. 

 
5.23 A Member said that it was clear that communications would be vital if there was 

to be a move to more commercial events. She asked if, in addition to the 
Finsbury Park example, if there were others that the Council might learn from. 

 
5.24 In response, the Head of Leisure and Green Spaces said that his service 

delivered one large annual event, in Haggerston Park. Found was targeted at 20-
25 year olds, and attracted numbers of 7,500. The Events Manager had worked 
hard to engage residents and the Park User Group who were initially opposed to 
the event. Through her being willing and keen to meet residents and users, and 
by working to ensure that the site was returned to normal use quickly after the 
event had closed, the event had now become a generally accepted item in the 
calendar which delivered a revenue stream. 

 
5.25 The Chair noted that the paper showed the service to charge low fees for 

community events, including large scale ones. She said that the commitment of 
community groups to hold events was a key strength of the area. However, she 
asked if charges could be revised or if events could be delivered in tandem with 
one another to reduce costs. 

 
5.26 The Head of Leisure and Green Spaces said that there was significant demand 

from community groups for their events to be clearly individual. He said that he 
would welcome a review of the way that the Council catered for community 
events. While they were clearly important, these event types accounted for the 
majority of the Event Team’s time, with officers needing to help ensure that they 
were run properly and were safe for the park and for those attending. The paper 
gave proposals around a new charging regime for community events, informed 
by scale. 

 
5.27 A Member shared the view that community events were important. However, she 

felt that there was scope to review the range of community events being 
delivered to ascertain whether some might reasonably be classified as 
commercial events. She felt that some events organisers expected significant 
levels of support from services for little cost, while also profiting from their 
delivery. She said that she thought there was room to look at the charges made 
in these cases. 

Page 13



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

 
5.28 Another Member said that while he was happy for new models to be considered, 

that he felt it important that the Council continued maintain a community event 
support offer. 

 
5.29 A Member agreed with this point, but thought that the approach could perhaps 

be better balanced through profit making events being asked to contribute more 
towards the cost that the Council incurred by supporting them. 

 
5.30 The Chair at this point brought the discussions on commercial and community 

events to an end. She suggested that the next set of Budget Scrutiny sessions 
(to look at potential savings for 2017/18 and 2018/19) should consider this in 
more detail. In addition, she was keen that future meetings looked more in depth 
at any scope for increased volunteering involvement.  

 
5.31 However, she asked that the remainder of the item be spent on Members asking 

any questions around the renegotiation of the GLL Leisure Contract. This 
meeting was focused on savings for 2016/17, and the paper showed that the 
renegotiation was where all savings for this period were expected to be achieved 
from. 

 
5.32 The Chair asked whether the renegotiation would have any impact on the service 

received by customers. She also asked if the work would involve a contract 
extension. 

 
5.33 The Head of Leisure and Green Spaces said that the negotiations were 

underway and were expected to be concluded during November. There would be 
some changes to service provision but the impact was not predicted to be 
significant. The Hackney Marshes Centre would be closed for access during the 
week, except for when it had been booked for events. Data had shown that the 
main centre had attracted little weekday usage. The Centre toilets and café 
would remain open all week. There would be some changes at Queensbridge 
Sports Hall to enable a health and fitness offer. Further details could be shared 
outside of the meeting, as they were currently subject of commercial 
confidentiality. 

 
5.34 There would potentially be an extension of contract. The service continued to 

work towards achieving its aim of having a leisure contract in place with zero cost 
to the Council. 

 
5.35 The Chair asked Members if any had concerns around the proposals on the 

Leisure contract. None were expressed. 
 
5.36 The Chair then asked the Cabinet Member for Health, Social Care and Culture if 

he could give a view on what he would take away from this discussion. 
 
5.37 In response, the Cabinet Member for Health, Social Care and Culture said that 

he had found the discussion useful. He had heard a clear commitment from 
Members that parks remained at a high standard, and continued to be a key 
Council offer to residents and visitors. There appeared to be a willingness to 
explore the capacity for and value of catering for large events. Finally, there was 
a view that community events and the charges attributed to them might be 
reviewed. This should help ensure that while there was still a community event 
offer, that the charges applied to them were more reflective of their size and the 
costs in officer time which were associated with them.  

  
 
 

Page 14



Wednesday, 21st October, 2015  

 

 
 
 
 

6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
6.1 The Chair noted that the Minutes of the previous meeting did not record some 

Members and an Officer who were in attendance, as present. These were: 
- Cllr Kam Adams  
- Cllr Feryal Demirci 
- Cllr Philip Glanville 
- Ian Holland 
- Cllr Anna-Joy Rickard 
- Cllr Caroline Selman 
- Cllr Peter Snell 

 
6.2 The Minutes of the meeting of the 16th September 2015 were agreed as an 

accurate record. 
 

7 Any Other Business  
 
7.1 There was no other business. 
 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00  - 9.00 pm 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Waste Strategy Team  10/11/15 

1 
 

Chargeable Bulky Waste – Income and Impact Considerations 

 

It has been proposed to move the current free bulky waste collection service to a 
chargeable footing. The exact mechanics of this are still to be confirmed. It is 
however estimated that this service change could result in significant benefits for the 
authority, generating revenue and reducing service and waste disposal costs. 

Accurately anticipating and modelling the impact of waste service changes is 
extremely challenging. This paper aims to explore in greater detail the potential 
impact of the shift to a chargeable bulky waste service on demand and resident 
behaviour. It draws on current available information from London Boroughs as well 
as information from other metropolitan areas within the UK that have introduced 
charging for their bulky waste collection service.  These experiences will help in the 
detailed planning for this service change and bring greater confidence to decision 
makers. 

 

Hackney: Current State of Play 

At present, Hackney offers all households across the borough up to four collections 
of five items annually. The service is currently free of charge to all households with 
around 24,000 collections being made annually. 

In addition to this service the Council works in partnership with QSA Homestore, a 
furniture reuse charity, which provides collections of reusable furniture for resale to 
people on low incomes. This service is free of charge to households in the borough. 
The intention is to retain this service in its current guise. 

 

Impact on service demand and income 

Assessing service demand is key to accurately calculating projected revenue. The 
available information clearly indicates that when the service moves from a free of 
charge to a chargeable footing the level of demand decreases.   

Oldham Council in greater Manchester moved from a free of charge to a chargeable 
service in April 2013. Costs were set at £15 for the collection of 3 items and £7.50 for 
each additional item. Prior to this service change around 25,000 collections were 
made annually. The authority represents a good case study for comparison due to 
the similar number of annual collections and the cost of the service being in line with 
that currently proposed. 

 In February 2014 the Oldham Council compiled a review of the impact of the service 
change 10 months post implementation. 

Table 1 below shows the impact on the number of requests per month following the 
service change compared to the previous year. The mean average reduction in the 
number of requests was 76%, a reduction of 14,417 collections. 

Page 17



Waste Strategy Team  10/11/15 

2 
 

 

Table 1. Oldham Council bulky waste collection request comparison 2012/13 – 2013/14 

 

 

This reduction in service was also observed by Calderdale Council, Halifax, West 
Yorkshire. The authority introduced a chargeable bulky waste service from 2006 to 
2008. Table 2 below shows the impact this had on number of requests for the 
service. In 2005/6 following the introduction of charging requests fell by 76%, a 
reduction of 14,376 collections.  

 

Table 2: Calderdale Council bulky waste collections 2004/05 – 2011/12 

Year Number of Collections 
2004/05 18,708 
2005/06 4,330 
2006/07 5,454 
2010/11 22,657 
2011/12 24,308 

 

Further evidence of the impact on demand of introducing a chargeable service is 
being sought from London Boroughs. The information currently available does 
however suggest that the drop of in service demand is significant and sustained.  

It can be assumed that within Hackney factors such as distances to adjoining 
borough HWRCs operated via North London Waste Authority and comparatively low 
levels of car ownership may necessitate use of the service. Drop off may be less 
than the percentages recorded within these example authorities. In addition the 
number of households eligible for continued free collections due to receipt of benefits 
would be larger within Hackney. Further information on the use of the service by this 
demographic would be needed, however, uptake recorded by Oldham Council of 
residents in their ‘protected characteristic groups’ entitled to free collections was low. 

From available information  it is reasonable to base revenue projections from the 
introduction of a chargeable service within a 25 – 35% of current service demand. At 

Page 18



Waste Strategy Team  10/11/15 

3 
 

the time of compiling this paper it has not been possible to obtain actual revenue 
figures from authorities. 

What happens to the waste? 

A key concern for authorities when moving to a chargeable bulky waste service is 
what will happen to waste that would have been collected through the service when 
demand reduces. The fear is that this will lead to an increase in the number of 
flytipping incidents by those unwilling to pay for a collection, negatively impacting 
local environmental quality and increasing investigation and clearance costs. 

Hackney has experience of removing services that provided free, and largely 
unmonitored, service for the disposal of residual and bulky waste. The community 
skip service was withdrawn in 2013. A schedule of monitoring former sites was put in 
place to monitor the on street impact of this. Known flytipping hotspots were also 
monitored to determine if an increase in the frequency of flytipping occurred. To 
date, negative impacts of this service change have been minimal with no meaningful 
increase in flytipping that can be directly attributed to the removal of the service. 

The available data for authorities that have moved to a chargeable service suggest 
that concerns around increased flytipping are largely unfounded. Oldham Council 
saw an average increase of 46 flytips per month in the 10 months following 
introduction of charging compared to the previous year. In the same period there 
was a decrease in demand of around 1,500 collections per month.  

Tonnage information was obtained from a number of local authorities that had in 
recent years moved from a free to a chargeable bulky waste service. These included 
the London Boroughs of Enfield, Barking and Dagenham and Tower Hamlets. 

Waste tonnages attributable to the bulky waste, flytip and street cleansing waste 
streams were outlined covering pre and post introduction of charging. An initial 
review of these indicates that while waste within the bulky category reduces post 
introduction of charging, in line with reduced demand, there is no strong consistent 
pattern to suggest that this shifts to either the flytipping or street cleansing waste 
streams.  

It can be assumed that alternative routes for waste that would have potentially been 
collected through the service are utilised such as furniture reuse, charity and 
HWRCs. These typically result in the waste being elevated up the waste hierarchy to 
reuse and recycling end uses. The signposting of these routes through high quality 
communications undoubtedly plays a key role in ensuring this. 

Flytipping information in this area must be viewed with caution. This relates to the 
definition of what constitutes a flytip and the reporting and recording of these. Within 
the available information there is no practical way of distinguishing the number of 
flytips by scale. It is flytips that consist of a car boot load of waste and above which 
would be the key category one would anticipate would spike following the 
introduction of charging.  

Page 19



Waste Strategy Team  10/11/15 

4 
 

Solely in terms of increase in number of incidents the experience of the service 
change in Oldham can be considered minimal. An examination of available tonnage 
information from other authorities suggests similar. 

 

Page 20



 
 
 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group – Public Realm 

19th November 2015 

Item 6 – Public Realm Budget Scrutiny for 2015/16 
- closing thoughts 

 
Item No 

 

6 
 
 
Outline 
The Task Group is coming to the end of Phase 1 of the Budget Scrutiny Process 
which involved being provided information on and giving consideration to, 
approaches to budget savings for 2016/17. 
 
While the November meeting was established for Members to hear information 
around any movement towards the integration of the waste and cleansing services 
currently operated separately by the Council and Hackney Homes, the task for this 
phase was to give consideration to a number of proposals for savings for 2016/17. 
 
This item has been added to the agenda for the Chair to summarise the proposals 
which have been aired within the meetings and for a final view to be reached on 
which ones the Task Group endorse. 
 
Action 
Members are asked to confirm which proposals for 2016/17 that as a group they 
endorse. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Future approaches to waste and cleansing services
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Draft Minutes of Public Realm Budget Scrutiny 21st October
	Minutes Appendix 1

	6 Public Realm Budget Scrutiny for 2015/16 - closing thoughts

